

# **Airport Karlovy Vary Ltd.**

# Airport Fees and Charges List

Effective July 01, 2018 (Amendment Nr. 3)

This Airport Fees and Charges List was approved by the decision of the Council of Karlovy Vary Region, in its capacity of Airport Karlovy Vary Ltd. Supervisory Board. Decision N° RK/440/05/12 of May 09, 2012 enters into force effective July 01, 2012. This Amendment Nr. 3 was approved by the decision of CEO Karlovy Vary Airport Ltd. of June 01, 2018 and enters into force effective July 01, 2018.



### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<u>1</u> <u>e</u>	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS	<u>3</u>
	ABBREVIATIONS USED	3
<u>2</u>	HANDLING SERVICES - CONTRACTUAL HANDLING	4
2.1	GENERAL TERMS OF APPLICATION	4
2.2	SETS OF HANDLING SERVICES	4
2.2.1	Basic Handling	4
2.2.2	2 Traffic Handling	4
2.2.3		
	3.1 Ferry in	
	3.2 Ferry out	
2.2.4	,	
2.3		
2.3.1		
2.3.2		
2.3.3	•	
2.3.4		
2.3.5		
	SECURITY	
	LANDING FEES	
3.1	INTRODUCTORY CHARGES	
3.2	LANDING FEES EXEMPTIONS	
3.3	CHARGES FOR TRAINING FLIGHTS	
3.3.1		
3.3.2		
	PARKING FEES	
4.1	APRONS APN M, APN W, APN E	
4.2	LONG-TERM PARKING ON THE APRONS	
	USE OF A HANGAR	
	AIRCRAFTS EXEMPTED FROM THE APRON PARKING CHARGES	
	AIRCRAFT FUELLING	
<u>7</u>	AIRPORT PRICE LIST	
7.1	SERVICES PROVIDED TO AIRCRAFT AND PASSENGERS ON REQUEST	
7.2	Material	12
7.3	CATERING	12
<u>8 P</u>	PASSENGER SERVICE CHARGES	12
8.1	THE FEE FOR USE OF THE AIRPORT BY PASSENGERS	12
8.2	EXEMPTION FROM PASSENGERS CHARGE	12
<u>9</u> C	CARRIAGE OF GOODS - CARGO	13
9.1	CARGO EXPORT	
9.2	CARGO IMPORT	13
9.3	VALUABLE GOODS "VALUABLE CARGO"	13
9.4	Extraordinary Services	13
	DISPOSAL OF ITEMS	12



## **General Terms and Conditions**

- The customer will be provided with an advanced information on expected price for services rendered;
- The price for services provided by the Airport Karlovy Vary Ltd., which are associated with the operation of an aircraft, must be paid prior the departure of the aircraft; specific rules apply for operators with signed services and payment contract with airport operator;
- Airport Karlovy Vary Ltd. is entitled to refuse providing of services or demand cash payments in case there is a breach in payment conditions as per the contract singed;

All prices published in this Fees and Charges list are prices without value added tax (VAT). The tax regime is governed by No. 235/2004 Coll. in Value added tax as amended.

In the case of non-standard requirements for services not mentioned in this List, the contractual price will be used.

### Abbreviations used 1.1

APN - Apron ASU – Air Starter Unit

**BEK - Security Check** 

GPU - Ground Sower Unit LKKV - Airport Karlovy Vary

MTOW - Maximum Take-off Weight

SAR - Search and Rescue flights

SRA – Security Restricted Ares of the airport

ATC - Air Traffic Control

CAA - Civil Aviation Authority

SGHA – Standard Ground Handling Agreement



# 2 Handling Services - Contractual Handling

### 2.1 General terms of application

By the Handling services listed in this Fees and Charges list are meant sets of partial services provided during the process of handling aircraft in scheduled or non-scheduled operations and general aviation, which are not charged individually but as a whole. Services, which are not part of the particular set of handling service or services on demand, will be charged separately in line with this Fees and Charges list.

Invoice payments are possible for contractual customers only or in case there is a binding written order for services in place. By signing the contract with the airport operator - provider of airport ground handling services the customer agrees with the range of services provided and its price.

Handling will not be charged in case of the following flights:

- Flights SAR;
- CAA and ANS CR performing control and inspection flights ordered or in the interest of LKKV;
- Air ambulance flights directly related to the human life rescue

Fees and charges for handling services are always billed to an aircraft with MTOW over 2.00 tons; aircraft with MTOW over 2.00 tons to 5.70 tons inclusive; subject to specific conditions as set out in the paragraph 2.3.4. these aircraft may be charged "assistance" only. All sets of handling services include basic services (i. e. minimum charge) which are provided in all cases and hence billed to each aircraft.

### 2.2 Sets of handling services

### 2.2.1 Basic Handling

Basic handling includes the following basic services only:

- Assistance by handling agent (issuance of ground handling orders, sending messages, providing information and necessary coordination)
- Standard services (guiding, chocking, assistance with engine turning off/on).
- GPU maximum of 60 min.
- 1x stairs (if the particular type of aircraft does not have own)
- Crew transport to/from aircraft
- Completion of operational and cargo documentation

### 2.2.2 Traffic Handling

Traffic handling will be charged in all cases when the flight is about to carry passengers (passengers are being checked in), unless the complete handling services are performed and charged. Traffic handling includes the following set of services:

- Basic handling,
- Passenger and baggage check in
- Security checks of crew, passengers, their cabin and hold baggage
- Pushback



### 2.2.3 Transit handling

### 2.2.3.1 Ferry in

Transit handling includes services as referred in point 2.2.2 and is charged when there are NO passengers on arrival.

### 2.2.3.2 Ferry out

Transit handling includes services as referred in point 2.2.2 and is charged when there are **NO passengers on departure.** 

### 2.2.4 Complete Handling (Full Handling)

Set of complete (Full) handling services includes traffic handling and is enhanced by cleaning services, cabin services (cleaning the toilets, refill of drinking water, disinfection, etc.) and loading and unloading of catering.

For flights operated to new destinations, subject the SGHA is signed, an introductory price in the form of 50% discount from the applicable handling rates could be granted for up to 12 months. This introductory price may be granted to all scheduled carriers for each new destination. In order to further develop the traffic, the airport operator may further incentivise the airlines for a limited period of time (not exceeding 36 months) by offering other types of discounts or incentives.

### 2.3 Basic handling rates

### 2.3.1 Aircraft with MTOW over 2.00 tonnes to 12.50 tonnes inclusive

Complete (full) handling	CZK 15 000.00
Ferry out	CZK 7 500.00
Ferry in	CZK 9 500.00
Traffic handling	CZK 9 500.00
Basic handling	CZK 5 500.00

### 2.3.2 Aircraft with MTOW over 12.50 tonnes to 25.00 tonnes inclusive

CZK 18 500.00
CZK 11 500.00
CZK 14 000.00
CZK 14 000.00
CZK 8 500.00

### 2.3.3 Aircraft with MTOW over 25.00 tonnes to 100.00 tonnes inclusive

Complete (full) handling	CZK 24 500.00
Ferry out	CZK 15 000.00
Ferry in	CZK19 000.00
Traffic handling	CZK 19 000.00
Basic handling	CZK 9 500.00

Specific pricing conditions apply for airlines with signed SGHA operating scheduled services or regular charter operations. In such case the applicable price for handling services will be part of the contract. Airport operator will provide more detailed information on request. Queries should be submitted to <a href="mailto:lnfo@airport-k-vary.cz">lnfo@airport-k-vary.cz</a>.



### 2.3.4 Assistance

Assistance includes only the marshalling of the aircraft to the stand and crew transportation from the aircraft to the terminal and back. Assistance must be paid by each operator of an aircraft with up to 5700 kg MTOW, which enters the apron/parking, stands area:

a)	Aircrafts up to 2 000 kg MTOW inclusive	CZK 250.00
b)	Aircrafts from 2 001 to 5 700 kg MTOW inclusive	CZK 500.00
c)	Aircraft from 5 701 kg MTOW	CZK 1000.00

In the case of training flights the assistance could be charged at 50% of the full rate, subject the flight was declared as a training one in advance. The assistance rate for aircrafts from 5701 kg MTOW may be used only in cases of training flights and when no other services apart from marshalling are required. In all other cases the applicable price as per the Fees and Charges List will be charged accordingly.

### 2.3.5 Flight operations outside the airport published operational hours

Besides of published charges an extra charge is accounted to cover extra operational costs for each initiated hour of operation of the aerodrome outside published operational hours. The charge is accounted from the time stated in the service order and it is calculated for every hour the airport remains in operations outside the published operational hours.

Scheduled flights are exempt from this charge.

Applicable surcharge (per hour or part thereof):

a)	For aircrafts requiring fire-fighting category up to 4	CZK 10 000.00
b)	For aircrafts requiring fire-fighting category 5 to 7	CZK 15 000.00



### 2.4 Security

- Security inspection of the aircraft on request CZK 450.00;
- Physical surveillance aircraft on the ramp on request CZK 350.00/1 hour or part thereof for each individual security officer;
- Issue and lending of ID card for permanent entry into the Security Restricted Area CZK 500.00/1 card; not applicable in cases of the first issue and regular renewal for airport operator employees;
- Issue and lending of an approval for permanent entrance to the Security Restricted Area CZK 500.00/1
  card and 1 vehicle; not applicable to the airport operator and contractors who perform work on behalf
  of the airport operator based on the order or contract;
- Other necessary trainings and instructions to employees of external entities accessing the airport OSH, fire safety etc., for each commenced hour CZK 300.00; not applicable to the airport operator and contractors who perform work on behalf of the airport operator based on the order or contract;
- Accompanying of person (persons) not entitled to access the airport SRA;, including the issuance of temporary permits for single-entry, each commenced hour CZK 300.00; not applicable to the airport operator and contractors who perform work on behalf of the airport operator based on the order or contract;
- Opening of the gates, physical inspection of the vehicle and surveillance at the entrance to the airport
  and SRA, each entry and the physical control of the vehicle, including the formalities (single temporary
  permission to enter) CZK 600.00; not applicable to the airport operator and contractors who perform
  work on behalf of the airport operator based on the order or contract;



# 3 Landing fees

The landing fee at Karlovy Vary Airport is calculated based on the internal categorization of an aircraft and its MTOW. The basis for calculating the landing fee is the maximum take-off weight of aircraft (MTOW) specified in the certificate of airworthiness of the airplane.

Category 1: aircrafts up to 2000 kg MTOW including:

CZK 600.00 (flat rate)

Category 2: aircrafts over 2000 kg MTOW according to the formula: price in CZK = ((MTOW - 1.5) / 47)<sup>0.8</sup> \* 15000

Note: MTOW is substituted in whole tonnes rounded up, for example, 2560 kg = 3.00 t, 21866 kg 22.00 tons

Table of exact landing fees for all types of aircraft is included in this price list as Annex 1

### 3.1 Introductory charges

The introductory prices of landing charges are applied for scheduled operations to the new destination traffic and for adding new frequencies on existing routes.

For new destination operations the levels of discounts from the regular landing charge are:

One frequency 1<sup>st</sup> year 95%

2<sup>nd</sup> year 50%

Two or more frequencies 1<sup>st</sup> year 95%

2<sup>nd</sup> year 75% 3<sup>rd</sup> year 50%

For incremental frequency to the existing destinations the discounts from the regular landing charge are:

1 additional rotation/week 1<sup>st</sup> year 25%

2 additional rotations/week 1<sup>st</sup> year 33% for each rotation

### 3.2 Landing fees exemptions

Flights of the following aircraft exempted from landing fees:

- Flight that returns due to technical problems or weather conditions at the departure airport and aircraft forced to make an emergency landing
- SAR flights,
- Flights by CAA and ANS CR performing control and inspection lights ordered by or in the interest of LKKV
- Air ambulance flights directly related to the human life rescue,
- Flights performed exclusively for the transport of Royalty, Heads of State and Government, Ministers on official missions;



### 3.3 Charges for training flights

### 3.3.1 Landing fees for training flights

Training flights are charged based for each full tonne of MTOW the following landing fees:

Full landing of A/C up to 100,000 kg MTOW 26.6% of the applicable landing fee

Touch and Go 50% of the landing fee stated in paragraph 3.3.1

In the case of a domestic operator, the training flight (with no passengers) reported 24 hours in advance (using the SITA network (KLVCZXH), email handling@airport-k-vary.cz or fax +420 353 360 636) it is possible to grant a discount of 50% from the applicable fee. The request should be filed together with the order for ground handling. Based operators and permanent users with signed the co-ordination agreement in place could be granted additional discount of 50%.

### 3.3.2 The fee for use of the safety lighting equipment during the training period

The use of the safety lighting equipment during the training flights will be subject to the charge that is equal to touch and go operations, i. e. each fly through will be charged at 50% of the full landing fee stated in paragraph 3.3.1.

### Notes:

- a) Touch and go the aircraft (wheels) touches ground and starts without speed reduction to taxiing speed (or without stopping on the track)
- b) Full landing a landing with a stop (anywhere) or speed reduction to the taxiing speed

# 4 Parking fees

The maximum take-off weight of the aircraft (MTOW) as specified in the certificate of airworthiness and the length of parking in hours are used to calculate the parking charges.

### 4.1 Aprons APN M, APN W, APN E

For every hour and tonne MTOW or part thereof:

From 05.00 - 19.00 LT CZK 14.00 From 19.00 - 05.00 LT CZK 7.00

### 4.2 Long-term parking on the aprons

For every week and tonne MTOW or part thereof:

Aircrafts up to 1000 kg MTOW inclusive: CZK 1 000.00
Aircraft over 1000 kg MTOW: CZK 700.00

Rates for the long-term parking over 1 month are a matter of the contractual agreement with the airport operator.



# 5 Use of a hangar

A hangar with dimensions 30x25m is available, charges for related services are:

Service	Rate in CZK	Rate per day in CZK	Rate per month in CZK	Rate per quarter in CZK	Rate per one year in CZK
Parking of single or twin engine A/C up to 1499 kg MTOW inclusive		375,00	2 500,00	6 875,00	24 750,00
Parking of single or twin engine A/C over 1500 kg MTOW		750,00	5 000,00	13 750,00	49 500,00
Manipulation with A/C (towing in or out)	300,00				
Opening or closing the hangar	100,00				

### 5.1 Aircrafts exempted from the apron parking charges:

- First two hours for aircraft with declared seating capacity less than 200 passengers and first four hours for aircraft with declared seating capacity equal to or greater than 200 passengers
- delayed due to weather conditions or because of the prohibition to take-off and emergency landings
- SAR flights,
- CAA and ANS CR flight performing control and inspection flights carried out on request or in the interest
  of LKKV,
- Air ambulance flights directly related to the human life rescue,
- Flights performed exclusively for the transport of Royalty, Heads of State and Government, Ministers on official missions

# 6 Aircraft fuelling

The aircraft re-fuelling services and sale of lubricants at Karlovy Vary Airport are provided by Total Ltd. Czech Republic. The information on current aviation fuel prices will be provided by handling department.

Respective tax regimes applicable in the sales of aviation fuel are governed by the applicable laws (č.235/2004 Coll on VAT and č.353/2003 Coll. SD) and the specific type of individual flights.



# 7 Airport price list

# 7.1 Services provided to aircraft and passengers on request

46601         Check-in officer         1 hour *         350,00           46603         Qualified worker (driver)         1 hour *         250,00           46604         Baggage handler         1 hour *         200,00           46605         VIP assistance         1 hour *         1 200,00           46613         Accurity officer         1 hour *         350,00           46612         Anchoring – fixed anchor         1 hour *         310,00           46613         Aircraft cleaning – aircraft with declared seating         1 hour *         700,00           - up to 19 passengers incl.         1 hour *         1000,00           - from 20 to 99 passengers         1 hour *         2000,00           - from 100 – 200 passengers         1 hour *         2000,00           - from 100 – 200 passengers         1 hour *         300,00           46614         Disinfection of A/C + use of disinfectant fluid         1 hour *         300,00           46615         Baggage positive identification on carrier request         1 hour *         300,00           46616         Assembly stairs         1 hour *         300,00           46617         Toilet services         1 four *         300,00           46620         Drainage of the water incl. personnel	Unit code	SERVICE	Unit charged	Price in CZK
46603   Qualified worker (driver)   1 hour *   250,00	46601	Check-in officer	1 hour *	350,00
46604   Baggage handler	46602	Handling officer	1 hour *	350,00
46605   VIP assistance	46603	Qualified worker (driver)		250,00
46613   Security officer	46604	Baggage handler	1 hour *	200,00
Anchoring - fixed anchor	46605	VIP assistance	1 hour *	1 000,00
Afec13	46653	Security officer	1 hour *	350,00
- up to 19 passengers incl from 20 to 49 passengers - from 50 to 99 passengers - from 100 - 200 passengers - 1 hour * 2 600,00 - 46614 - Disinfection of A/C + use of disinfectant fluid - 1 hour * 3 000,00 - 46615 - Baggage positive identification on carrier request - 1 hour * 3 000,00 - 46610 - Assembly stairs - 1 hour * 3 000,00 - 46610 - Drainage of the water incl. personnel - 15 minutes * 2 000,00 - 46620 - Drainage of the water incl. personnel - 15 minutes * 2 000,00 - 46621 - Toilet services - 1 faction - 400,00 - 46622 - Catering (load and offload) up to 20 kg (incl. security check) - 1 action - 400,00 - 46623 - Accumulator incl. personnel - 15 minutes * 150,00 - 46624 - Accumulator incl. personnel - 15 minutes * 200,00 - 46625 - Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel - 15 minutes * 200,00 - 46626 - A/C towing or pushback - 1 action - 600,00 - 46627 - Fire assistance - 1 hour * 800,00 - 46628 - GPU - 30 minutes * 300,00 - 46630 - Moter de-icing prices excluded) - Work and in the personnel - 10 minutes * 300,00 - MTOW 0d 50 001 kg - MTOW 25 001 – 50 000 kg - MTOW 25 001 – 50	46612	Anchoring – fixed anchor	1 hour *	310,00
- from 20 to 49 passengers	46613	Aircraft cleaning – aircraft with declared seating	1 hour *	
- from 50 to 99 passengers		- up to 19 passengers incl.	1 hour *	700,00
-from 100 – 200 passengers		- from 20 to 49 passengers	1 hour *	1 000,00
46614         Disinfection of A/C + use of disinfectant fluid         1 hour *         600,00           46615         Baggage positive identification on carrier request         1 hour *         3000,00           46616         Assembly stairs         1 hour *         3000,00           46619         Drinking water supply         Full service         350,00           46620         Drainage of the water incl. personnel         15 minutes *         200,00           46621         Toilet services         1 draining place         450,00           46651         Catering (load and offload) up to 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         400,00           46652         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46652         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46622         Accumulator incl. personnel         15 minutes *         150,00           46623         Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person         15 minutes *         200,00           46625         Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel         1 hour *         800,00           46626         A/C towing or pushback         1 action         1 hour *         1 200,00           46627         Fire assistance		- from 50 to 99 passengers	1 hour *	2 000,00
46615         Baggage positive identification on carrier request         1 hour *         3 000,00           46616         Assembly stairs         1 hour *         300,00           46619         Drinking water supply         Full service         350,00           46620         Drainage of the water incl. personnel         15 minutes *         200,00           46621         Toilet services         1 draining place         450,00           46621         Catering (load and offload) up to 20 kg (incl. security check         1 action         400,00           46651         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46652         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46622         Accumulator incl. personnel         15 minutes *         150,00           46623         Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person         15 minutes *         200,00           46625         Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel         1 hour *         800,00           46626         A/C towing or pushback         1 action         600,00           46627         Fire assistance         1 hour *         1 200,00           46634         GPU         30 minutes *         800,00		- from 100 – 200 passengers	1 hour *	2 600,00
46615         Baggage positive identification on carrier request         1 hour *         3 000,00           46616         Assembly stairs         1 hour *         300,00           46619         Drinking water supply         Full service         350,00           46620         Drainage of the water incl. personnel         15 minutes *         200,00           46621         Toilet services         1 draining place         450,00           46621         Catering (load and offload) up to 20 kg (incl. security check         1 action         400,00           46651         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46652         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46622         Accumulator incl. personnel         15 minutes *         150,00           46623         Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person         15 minutes *         200,00           46625         Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel         1 hour *         800,00           46626         A/C towing or pushback         1 action         600,00           46627         Fire assistance         1 hour *         1 200,00           46634         GPU         30 minutes *         800,00	46614	Disinfection of A/C + use of disinfectant fluid	1 hour *	600,00
46616         Assembly stairs         1 hour *         300,00           46619         Drinking water supply         Full service         350,00           46620         Drainage of the water incl. personnel         15 minutes *         200,00           46621         Toilet services         1 draining place         450,00           46651         Catering (load and offload) up to 20 kg (incl. security check         1 action         400,00           46652         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46622         Accumulator incl. personnel         15 minutes *         150,00           46623         Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person         15 minutes *         200,00           46625         Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel         1 hour *         800,00           46626         A/C towing or pushback         1 action         600,00           46627         Fire assistance         1 hour *         1 200,00           46634         Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)         1 kmur*         800,00           46639         Hot air unit + personnel         30 minutes *         800,00           46630         De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg         1 x         2 500,00	46615		1 hour *	3 000,00
46620         Drainage of the water incl. personnel         15 minutes *         200,00           46621         Toilet services         1 draining place         450,00           46651         Catering (load and offload) up to 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         400,00           46652         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46623         Accumulator incl. personnel         15 minutes *         150,00           46623         Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person         15 minutes *         200,00           46625         Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel         1 hour *         800,00           46626         A/C towing or pushback         1 action         600,00           46627         Fire assistance         1 hour *         1 200,00           46634         Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)         1 employee/1 hour *         600,00           46628         GPU         30 minutes *         800,00           46629         Hot air unit + personnel         30 minutes *         300,00           46630         De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg         1 x         2 500,00           46630         ASU (air starter unit)         1 start         2 000,00 <td>46616</td> <td></td> <td>1 hour *</td> <td>300,00</td>	46616		1 hour *	300,00
46620         Drainage of the water incl. personnel         15 minutes *         200,00           46621         Toilet services         1 draining place         450,00           46651         Catering (load and offload) up to 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         400,00           46652         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46623         Accumulator incl. personnel         15 minutes *         150,00           46623         Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person         15 minutes *         200,00           46625         Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel         1 hour *         800,00           46626         A/C towing or pushback         1 action         600,00           46627         Fire assistance         1 hour *         1 200,00           46634         Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)         1 employee/1 hour *         600,00           46628         GPU         30 minutes *         800,00           46629         Hot air unit + personnel         30 minutes *         300,00           46630         De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg         1 x         2 500,00           46630         ASU (air starter unit)         1 start         2 000,00 <td>46619</td> <td>Drinking water supply</td> <td>Full service</td> <td>350,00</td>	46619	Drinking water supply	Full service	350,00
46621         Toilet services         1 draining place         450,00           46651         Catering (load and offload) up to 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         400,00           46652         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46622         Accumulator incl. personnel         15 minutes*         150,00           46623         Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person         15 minutes*         200,00           46625         Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel         1 hour *         800,00           46626         A/C towing or pushback         1 action         600,00           46627         Fire assistance         1 hour *         1 200,00           46628         Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)         1 employee/1 hour *         600,00           46628         GPU         30 minutes *         800,00           46629         Hot air unit + personnel         30 minutes *         800,00           46630         De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg         1 x         2 500,00           46630         ASU (air starter unit)         1 x         5 000,00           46631         ASU (air starter unit)         1 start         2 000,00	46620			
46651         Catering (load and offload) up to 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         400,00           46652         Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)         1 action         1 400,00           46622         Accumulator incl. personnel         15 minutes*         150,00           46623         Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person         15 minutes*         200,00           46625         Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel         1 hour *         800,00           46626         A/C towing or pushback         1 action         600,00           46627         Fire assistance         1 hour *         1 200,00           46634         Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)         1 employee/1 hour *         600,00           46628         GPU         30 minutes *         300,00           46630         Hot air unit + personnel         30 minutes *         300,00           46630         De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg         1 x         2 500,00           46630         - MTOW od 50 01 kg         1 x         5 000,00           Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used         1 start         2 000,00           46631         ASU (air starter u	46621			-
46652Catering (load and offload) over 20 kg (incl. security check)1 action1 400,0046622Accumulator incl. personnel15 minutes *150,0046623Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person15 minutes *200,0046625Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel1 hour *800,0046626A/C towing or pushback1 action600,0046627Fire assistance1 hour *1 200,0046634Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)1 employee/1 hour *600,0046628GPU30 minutes *800,0046629Hot air unit + personnel30 minutes *300,0046630De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg - MTOW 25 001 – 50 000 kg - MTOW od 50 001 kg Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used1 x5 000,0046631ASU (air starter unit)1 start2 000,0046632Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)1 bag up to 5 kg up to 10 kg200,0066001Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)1 person max. 2 hours1 500,00				
46622Accumulator incl. personnel15 minutes *150,0046623Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person15 minutes *200,0046625Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel1 hour *800,0046626A/C towing or pushback1 action600,0046627Fire assistance1 hour *1 200,0046654Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)1 employee/1 hour *600,0046628GPU30 minutes *800,0046629Hot air unit + personnel30 minutes *300,0046630De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg - MTOW 25 001 – 50 000 kg - MTOW 05 5001 kg1 x5 000,0046630ASU (air starter unit)1 start2 000,0046631ASU (air starter unit)1 start2 000,0046631Passenger stairs1 hour *800,0046632Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)1 bag up to 5 kg up to 10 kg200,00 up to 10 kg200,0066001Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)1 person max. 2 hours1 500,00	46652			
46623Mechanical removal of the snow – 1 person15 minutes *200,0046625Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel1 hour *800,0046626A/C towing or pushback1 action600,0046627Fire assistance1 hour *1 200,0046654Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)1 employee/1 hour *600,0046628GPU30 minutes *800,0046629Hot air unit + personnel30 minutes *300,0046630De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg1 x2 500,0046630- MTOW 25 001 – 50 000 kg1 x5 000,0046630- MTOW od 50 001 kg1 x7 500,00Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used1 start2 000,0046631ASU ( air starter unit)1 start2 000,0046632Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)1 hour *800,0066001Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)1 person max. 2 hours1 500,0066002VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment1 person max. 2 hours1 500,00	46622			
46625         Forklift – loading A/C incl. personnel         1 hour *         800,00           46626         A/C towing or pushback         1 action         600,00           46627         Fire assistance         1 hour *         1 200,00           46654         Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)         1 employee/1 hour *         600,00           46628         GPU         30 minutes *         800,00           46629         Hot air unit + personnel         30 minutes *         300,00           46630         De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg         1 x         2 500,00           46630         - MTOW 25 001 – 50 000 kg         1 x         5 000,00           46630         - MTOW od 50 001 kg         1 x         7 500,00           Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used         1 start         2 000,00           46631         ASU ( air starter unit)         1 start         2 000,00           46632         Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)         1 bag up to 5 kg         200,00           66001         Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)         1 person max. 2 hours         1 5		•		·
46626A/C towing or pushback1 action600,0046627Fire assistance1 hour *1 200,0046654Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)1 employee/1 hour *600,0046628GPU30 minutes *800,0046629Hot air unit + personnel30 minutes *300,0046630De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg1 x2 500,0046630- MTOW 25 001 - 50 000 kg1 x5 000,0046630- MTOW od 50 001 kg1 x7 500,00Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used1 start2 000,0046631ASU ( air starter unit)1 start2 000,0046632Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)1 bag up to 5 kg200,0066001Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)1 person500,0066002VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment1 person max. 2 hours1 500,00				
46627Fire assistance1 hour *1 200,0046654Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)1 employee/1 hour *600,0046628GPU30 minutes *800,0046629Hot air unit + personnel30 minutes *300,0046630De-icing - MTOW 25 001 – 50 000 kg - MTOW od 50 001 kg Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used1 x5 000,0046631ASU ( air starter unit)1 start2 000,0046632Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)1 bag up to 5 kg up to 10 kg200,0066001Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)1 person500,0066002VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment1 person max. 2 hours1 500,00				
Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used materials excluded)   1 employee/1 hour *   600,00				
46629Hot air unit + personnel30 minutes *300,0046630De-icingA/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg1 x2 500,0046630- MTOW 25 001 - 50 000 kg1 x5 000,0046630- MTOW od 50 001 kg1 x7 500,00Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used1 start2 000,0046631ASU ( air starter unit)1 start2 000,0046632Passenger stairs1 hour *800,0046632Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)1 bag up to 5 kg200,0066001Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)1 person500,0066002VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment1 person max. 2 hours1 500,00		Decontamination of leakage of harmful substances (used		
46630 De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg 46630 - MTOW 25 001 - 50 000 kg 46630 - MTOW od 50 001 kg Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used  46631 ASU (air starter unit) 1 start 2 000,00 46632 Passenger stairs 1 hour * 800,00 46632 Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets) up to 10 kg 400,00  66001 Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)  VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment 1 person max. 2 hours	46628	GPU	30 minutes *	800,00
46630 De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg 46630 - MTOW 25 001 – 50 000 kg 46630 - MTOW od 50 001 kg Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used  46631 ASU ( air starter unit) 1 start 2 000,00 46631 Passenger stairs 1 hour * 800,00 46632 Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets) up to 10 kg 400,00  66001 Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)  VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment  1 person max. 2 hours	46629	Hot air unit + personnel	30 minutes *	300,00
46630 - MTOW 25 001 – 50 000 kg 1 x 5 000,00  46630 - MTOW od 50 001 kg 1 x 7 500,00  Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used  46631 ASU (air starter unit) 1 start 2 000,00  46631 Passenger stairs 1 hour * 800,00  46632 Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets) up to 10 kg 400,00  66001 Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)  VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment 1 person max. 2 hours	46630	De-icing A/C - MTOW up to 25 000 kg	1 x	2 500,00
46630 - MTOW od 50 001 kg Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used  46631 ASU (air starter unit) 1 start 2 000,00  46631 Passenger stairs 1 hour * 800,00  46632 Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets) up to 10 kg 400,00  66001 Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)  VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment 1 person max. 2 hours	46630		1 x	
Note: de-icing prices exclusive of the price of de-icing fluids; the final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used  46631 ASU ( air starter unit) 1 start 2 000,00  46631 Passenger stairs 1 hour * 800,00  46632 Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets) 1 bag up to 5 kg up to 10 kg 400,00  66001 Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline) 1 person 500,00  VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment 1 person max. 2 hours	46630	_	1 x	
46631ASU ( air starter unit)1 start2 000,0046631Passenger stairs1 hour *800,0046632Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)1 bag up to 5 kg up to 10 kg200,0066001Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)1 person500,0066002VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment1 person max. 2 hours1 500,00				ŕ
46631ASU ( air starter unit)1 start2 000,0046631Passenger stairs1 hour *800,0046632Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)1 bag up to 5 kg up to 10 kg200,0066001Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)1 person500,0066002VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment1 person max. 2 hours1 500,00		final cost will be calculated based on quantity of fluids used		
46631 Passenger stairs  Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)  Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)  VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment  1 hour *  1 bag up to 5 kg up to 10 kg 400,00  1 person 500,00  1 person max. 2 hours	46631		1 start	2 000,00
46632 Collection of garbage from A/C incl. disposal (not applicable to food and drink residues, used eating sets)  Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)  VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment  1 bag up to 5 kg up to 10 kg 400,00 400,00 1 person 500,00 1 person max. 2 hours				
food and drink residues, used eating sets) up to 10 kg 400,00  Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)  VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment 1 person max. 2 hours				
66001 Business lounge on departure incl. standard refreshment (not applied to passengers invited by an airline)  500,00  VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment  1 person max. 2 hours				,
applied to passengers invited by an airline)  66002 VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment 1 person max. 2 hours 1 500,00	66001	·		
66002 VIP lounge – incl. basic refreshment 1 person max. 2 hours 1 500,00		,	·	,
	66002		· ·	1 500,00
	46655	Baggage wrapping (incl. folia)		85,00

<sup>\*=</sup> The charge is applied for each commenced time unit specified in the pricelist



### 7.2 Material

Unit code	MATERIAL	Unit charged	Price in CZK
46644	Polyethylene bags	1 piece	20,00
46648	De-icing fluid Safewing MP I – purchase price + 10% De-icing fluid Safewing MP II – purchase price + 10%	1 litre	calculated
46649	SANI PACK – WC disinfection – purchase price + 10%	1 piece	calculated
46650	Absorption material – purchase price + 10%	1 kg	calculated

Provisions of the third party services are subject to 10 % surcharge to the base charge. Delivery of material is charged with the 10% surcharge to the purchase price.

### 7.3 Catering

Supply of catering can be arranged on request. Meals are prepared by the external contractors based on the orders by the carrier through handling department.

# 8 Passenger service charges

### 8.1 The fee for use of the airport by passengers

In international and domestic scheduled and non-scheduled air transport carriers shall pay for each departing passenger

CZK 350.00

The introductory rate of passenger service charges for new scheduled destination

CZK 175.00

The introductory rate is granted to all carriers and for each new destination in scheduled air services for 12 months, starting the month of operations.

### 8.2 Exemption from passengers charge

- Passengers in direct transit;
- Transfer passengers, provided that the period between their arrival and departure to another destination does not exceed 12 hours;
- Children under 2 years of age.

Note: an unplanned landing in the Czech Republic and consequent alternative means of transport from the Czech Republic to abroad will be considered as a direct transit.



# 9 Carriage of goods - CARGO

### 9.1 Cargo EXPORT

MAXIMUM SIZE AND WEIGHT OF A PACKAGE:

60 x 40 x 100 cm, maximum weight 30 kg (mail and small valuable items) 90 x 90 x 100 cm, maximum weight 60 kg Other package sizes - prior agreement needed

Administrative fee for the acceptance of the shipment and its registration

Fee for security check of the consignment – screening

Fee for security check - a physical inspection of shipment

Unloading of the consignment from the car and transport to the security check

Handling fee - transport and loading to aircraft

Storage of the consignment on departure

over 24 hours CZK 10.00/1 kg for each commenced working day (24 hours)

CZK 300.00/1AWB

CZK 50.00/per pack

CZK 200.00/per pack

CZK 2.00/1kg

CZK 2.00/1 kg

first 24 hours free of charge

Note: Prices apply also to the company mail of airlines

### 9.2 Cargo IMPORT

MAXIMUM SIZE AND WEIGHT OF A PACKAGE:

90 x 100 x 150 cm (other dimensions subject to previous agreement) Weight up to 100 kg/1 piece

Handling fee - transportation and loading to car Administrative fee on arrival for consignment Storage of the consignment on arrival CZK 2.00/1 kg
CZK 300.00/1AWB
first 24 hours free of charge
over 24 hours of 10.00 CZK/1 kg
for each commenced working day (24 hours)

Note: Prices apply also to the company mail of airlines

### 9.3 Valuable goods "Valuable Cargo"

Same fees as above (includes surveillance during storage and transportation from/to the storage place from the aircraft, guarding the warehouse)

CZK 1 000.00 per shipment

### 9.4 Extraordinary Services

Opening of the consignment prior delivery on customer's request, change of delivery address of the recipient and similar services demanded by the customer CZK 800.00 per package

### 9.5 Disposal of items

Uncollected goods (1 pack)

CZK 600.00 plus any other costs incurred



Appendix 1 - Calculated rates of landing fees from 1.00 tonne to 39.00 tonnes MTOW including – part 1

MTOW Basic landing fee rate in CZ		
(6)	Operational	Training
1	600 Kč	160 Kč
2	600 Kč	160 Kč
3	953 Kč	254 Kč
4	1 435 Kč	382 Kč
5	1 878 Kč	500 Kč
6	2 296 Kč	611 Kč
7	2 696 Kč	717 Kč
8	3 081 Kč	820 Kč
9	3 455 Kč	919 Kč
10	3 819 Kč	1 016 Kč
11	4 174 Kč	1 110 Kč
12	4 522 Kč	1 203 Kč
13	4 864 Kč	1 294 Kč
14	5 199 Kč	1 383 Kč
15	5 529 Kč	1 471 Kč
16	5 855 Kč	1 557 Kč
17	6 176 Kč	1 643 Kč
18	6 492 Kč	1 727 Kč
19	6 805 Kč	1 810 Kč
20	7 115 Kč	1 892 Kč
21	7 421 Kč	1 974 Kč
22	7 724 Kč	2 054 Kč
23	8 023 Kč	2 134 Kč
24	8 321 Kč	2 213 Kč
25	8 615 Kč	2 292 Kč
26	8 907 Kč	2 369 Kč
27	9 197 Kč	2 446 Kč
28	9 484 Kč	2 523 Kč
29	9 770 Kč	2 599 Kč
30	10 053 Kč	2 674 Kč
31	10 334 Kč	2 749 Kč
32	10 613 Kč	2 823 Kč
33	10 891 Kč	2 897 Kč
34	11 167 Kč	2 970 Kč
35	11 441 Kč	3 043 Kč
36	11 713 Kč	3 116 Kč
37	11 984 Kč	3 188 Kč
38	12 253 Kč	3 259 Kč
39	12 521 Kč	3 331 Kč



Appendix 1 - Calculated rates of landing fees from 40.00 tonnes to 89.00 tonnes MTOW including – part 2

MTOW (t)	Basic landing fee rate in CZK		
(-)	Operational	Training	
40	12 787 Kč	3 401 Kč	
41	13 052 Kč	3 472 Kč	
42	13 316 Kč	3 542 Kč	
43	13 578 Kč	3 612 Kč	
44	13 840 Kč	3 681 Kč	
45	14 100 Kč	3 750 Kč	
46	14 358 Kč	3 819 Kč	
47	14 616 Kč	3 888 Kč	
48	14 872 Kč	3 956 Kč	
49	15 128 Kč	4 024 Kč	
50	15 382 Kč	4 092 Kč	
51	15 635 Kč	4 159 Kč	
52	15 887 Kč	4 226 Kč	
53	16 138 Kč	4 293 Kč	
54	16 389 Kč	4 359 Kč	
55	16 638 Kč	4 426 Kč	
56	16 886 Kč	4 492 Kč	
57	17 134 Kč	4 558 Kč	
58	17 380 Kč	4 623 Kč	
59	17 626 Kč	4 688 Kč	
60	17 871 Kč	4 754 Kč	
61	18 115 Kč	4 818 Kč	
62	18 358 Kč	4 883 Kč	
63	18 600 Kč	4 948 Kč	
64	18 842 Kč	5 012 Kč	
65	19 082 Kč	5 076 Kč	
66	19 322 Kč	5 140 Kč	
67	19 562 Kč	5 203 Kč	
68	19 800 Kč	5 267 Kč	
69	20 038 Kč	5 330 Kč	
70	20 275 Kč	5 393 Kč	
71	20 512 Kč	5 456 Kč	
72	20 747 Kč	5 519 Kč	
73	20 983 Kč	5 581 Kč	
74	21 217 Kč	5 644 Kč	
75	21 451 Kč	5 706 Kč	
76	21 684 Kč	5 768 Kč	
77	21 916 Kč	5 830 Kč	
78	22 148 Kč	5 891 Kč	
79	22 380 Kč	5 953 Kč	
80	22 610 Kč	6 014 Kč	
81	22 841 Kč	6 076 Kč	
82	23 070 Kč	6 137 Kč	
83	23 299 Kč	6 198 Kč	
84	23 528 Kč	6 258 Kč	
85	23 755 Kč	6 319 Kč	
86	23 983 Kč	6 379 Kč	
87	24 210 Kč	6 440 Kč	
88	24 436 Kč	6 500 Kč	
89	24 661 Kč	6 560 Kč	